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          1  COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Good afternoon.

          3  My name is Councilman Stewart. I am the Chair of the

          4  Immigration Committee. I would like to welcome

          5  everyone here today on Resolution 42.

          6                 First, I would like to thank the

          7  member of the Immigration Committee who is here,

          8  Council Member Palma. I would like to thank my staff

          9  for supporting me in today's hearing.

         10                 I also want to commend Council Member

         11  Martinez on his imperative work on immigration

         12  issues, generally and specifically for his

         13  leadership on Resolution 42, the important

         14  resolution that brings us here today.

         15                 I also want to welcome Council Member

         16  Lew Fidler.  Just in time.

         17                 Resolution 42 promotes the realistic

         18  needs of immigrants by calling on Congress to oppose

         19  a temporary guest worker proposal introduced by

         20  President Bush this past January.

         21                 President Bush's proposal does not

         22  offer pathways to permanent legal residency or

         23  citizenship for immigrants, nor does it protect

         24  family unity or workers' rights.

         25                 While the Immigration Committee
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          2  welcomes a national dialogue about immigration,

          3  President Bush has not followed up on his proposal,

          4  nor has he actively supported legislation currently

          5  pending in Congress that would take important steps

          6  towards the comprehensive immigration reform this

          7  country needs.

          8                 Resolution 42 recognizes the

          9  shortcomings of Bush's proposal and calls on the

         10  Congress to support current legislation that will

         11  provide meaningful reform such as the DREAM Act and

         12  the AgJobs Act as well as to oppose to play act. I

         13  am glad to see so many organizations present to

         14  voice their concerns about President Bush's

         15  proposal.

         16                 Now more than ever, we have an

         17  obligation to protect the safety, the rights and

         18  well- being of New York City residents regardless of

         19  their immigration status. The Immigration Committee

         20  will continue to push for effective immigration

         21  reform that provides parts to permanency and

         22  citizenship for hard working immigrants and their

         23  families. I want to thank you again and let's begin.

         24                 Let me first again recognize my

         25  colleagues who are here, Lou Fidler, Council Member
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          2  Lou Fidler and Council Member Palma. We will call on

          3  Chung-Wha Hong from the New York Immigration

          4  Coalition, Jean Kim and Ed Ott and also Amin Khan

          5  from Transport Workers Union. Mr. Khan? You may

          6  begin.

          7                 MS. HONG: Thank you. I'd like to

          8  thank Council Member Stewart and also other Council

          9  Members for providing the opportunity to address a

         10  very important issue in immigrant community in New

         11  York and national wide. And also thanks to Jackie

         12  Sherman who has done a wonderful job of staffing and

         13  Cindy from Council Martinez's office.

         14                 I thought what I would do is just go

         15  through our basic position of the coalition, our

         16  response to the President Bush's proposal and also

         17  address some critical issues on the local level that

         18  are directly related to the issue of legalization.

         19                 First of all, we're really glad that

         20  the Council has a very strong resolution and if

         21  passed, I think the resolution will send a really

         22  strong signal to the President and to Congress that

         23  New Yorkers are calling for a comprehensive

         24  immigration reform that includes very critical

         25  provisions that affect all the countless immigrants
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          2  in New York. We on the one hand welcome the

          3  President's acknowledgment that the United States

          4  needs immigration reform and we also think that he

          5  rightly acknowledges the tremendous contributions of

          6  immigrants.

          7                 However, after laying out all the

          8  flowery language about all the great tradition of

          9  immigration and the contributions of immigrants, his

         10  solution is the wrong one to address the problems

         11  that we have with immigrants. There is several

         12  reasons. One, which Council Member already alluded

         13  to is President Bush's temporary worker program does

         14  not provide a path to citizenship. Without such a

         15  path to citizenship, any temporary worker program is

         16  a dead end program. It is not an opportunity.

         17                 Basically what a temporary worker

         18  program does, it creates a legally sanctioned

         19  permanent underclass of workers. We're afraid that

         20  President Bush's plan is headed in that direction.

         21  So, in the end, workers might be worse off by

         22  signing up with this program because they might be

         23  more vulnerable to immigration enforcement than if

         24  they had not signed up for it. Not having a path to

         25  citizenship is a real problem.
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          2                 The second problem is that the

          3  President's plan is extremely weak on worker

          4  protections. He makes according to his plan

          5  employers have complete control over whether the

          6  workers stay here in the United States or not.

          7  That's a very vulnerable position for workers to be

          8  in. Once the employer has the control over, whether

          9  you get to stay here or not, obviously the employer

         10  may fire or dismiss or make other decisions trying

         11  to abuse his authority over the immigration status

         12  of workers.

         13                 In addition, the temporary worker

         14  program as currently outlined in President Bush's

         15  plan really has a huge risk of bringing down wages

         16  and standards. Wages and working conditions of all

         17  workers in the United States. If we don't build in a

         18  strong wage protection and strong working

         19  conditions, kind of standards, into a temporary

         20  worker program, what it does it will attract and

         21  bring people into cheap labor economy. Perpetuate a

         22  cheap labor economy that really exploits and

         23  perpetuates a low wage economy which we don't want

         24  for both immigrant workers and native born workers.

         25                 The most disturbing thing he said
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          2  about this is that he at the same time is

          3  instituting a temporary worker program will increase

          4  work force enforcement. So all the nightmarish kind

          5  of work place raids or employer sanctions and all

          6  the policies that we know promote discrimination and

          7  exploitation, he's planning to increase work place

          8  enforcement. That is not a good idea.

          9                 Third, his plan also does not address

         10  family reunification. There are first of all, 3.5

         11  million immigrants stuck in the back logs of our

         12  horrendous dysfunctional immigration system. And a

         13  lot of them are family members of those who have

         14  petitioned for them. We have family members who have

         15  been separated for dozens of years because of the

         16  back logs and the family immigration system is just

         17  not working. There are fundamental reforms in the

         18  family reunification system which both increases the

         19  number of family visas that are available and then

         20  which also needs to clear the family back logs that

         21  currently exist.

         22                 The next reason why President Bush's

         23  proposal was taken with a lot of skepticism is

         24  because it does not address current immigration

         25  reform proposals which the Council Member addressed.
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          2  We'll hear more about the DREAM Act, AgJobs bill and

          3  the Clear Act, I think, in testimonies that are

          4  following.

          5                 We also feel it's important that any

          6  immigration reform proposal includes integration

          7  provisions. Immigrants who get legal status here

          8  must be integrated into our community. We need to

          9  allocate resources to support immigrants full

         10  participation into our economy and into our society

         11  which means we need to support programs that help

         12  immigrants learn English, help them become citizens,

         13  allow them to participate fully in our community and

         14  civic life.

         15                 Those are some of the strong

         16  objections that we have to the President Bush's

         17  proposal. Any comprehensive immigration reform bill

         18  must seriously address those provisions. There are

         19  other legislation being drafted right now in

         20  Congress that immigrant groups will be supporting

         21  that provides a blue print for all the major

         22  provisions that need to be included. I don't want to

         23  end my testimony with that.

         24                 Linking it to local issues because

         25  the very same group of undocumented immigrants who
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          2  have benefited from legalization are also suffering

          3  because of the policies directed towards to them on

          4  the City and State levels. On the City level, just

          5  to give a few examples is that the NYPD, the police

          6  is forced to make immigration arrest and that's a

          7  very dangerous trend. There is a national trend to

          8  try to expand immigration enforcement. So that local

          9  cops are starting to go after immigrants for

         10  violating their status or other civil immigration

         11  violations. NYPD continues to make immigration

         12  arrest based on information from the federal

         13  government. We need to urge the Mayor and NYPD to

         14  stop making those immigration arrests.

         15                 Second, immigrants comprise almost

         16  half of the City's work force. But, they don't have

         17  any of the work force development resources or

         18  programs that they have access to. So, we're working

         19  with the Council on a language access bill for one

         20  stop centers which we think will help immigrants

         21  access more of the job training services. We also

         22  need to leverage more vocational ESL resources from

         23  the City because workers need to speak English to

         24  get better jobs.

         25                 We also need legal services for
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          2  immigrant workers who may be undocumented. There are

          3  suppose to have the same rates regardless of your

          4  immigration status. But unfortunately, a lot of the

          5  times they just don't get paid their fair wages or

          6  they get abused by employers. One of the solutions

          7  that we're proposing as part of the immigrant

          8  opportunities initiative is to allow legal services

          9  providers to assist workers accessing workers' comp

         10  or apply for unemployment insurance or file wage and

         11  hour complaints. That's a very important livelihood

         12  issue for undocumented immigrants even as they await

         13  a more comprehensive federal immigration reform.

         14                 We're also working on a day labor

         15  bill which we hope would also increase working

         16  standards for day laborers. All of those are

         17  initiatives that I think is really wonderful and

         18  really important for the City Council to work on.

         19                 My final note is going to address a

         20  couple of State level issues. One is labor law

         21  enforcement and the final one is the issue of the

         22  drivers license. Because some many of the

         23  undocumented immigrants are more vulnerable to

         24  violations of labor law, what we have done is write

         25  and strengthening -- write into the minimal wage
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          2  bill that currently is pending in State legislature,

          3  labor law enforcement provisions. We welcome City

          4  Council's support for the minimal wage bill. Because

          5  it does include labor law enforcement provisions to

          6  stop employers from just not paying minimal wage or

          7  not paying them at all or overtime.

          8                 The final issue is the issue of

          9  drivers license. As you are probably aware, we just

         10  held a huge rally in front of the DMV office a

         11  couple days ago because our Governor and DMV has

         12  begun to threaten taking away driver licenses from

         13  as many as 200,000 people; most of whom are

         14  immigrants. They're demanding that immigrants

         15  provide social security numbers. And we're saying

         16  that your ability to obtain a driver's license

         17  really should be dependent on whether you pass the

         18  road test and whether you're a safe driver and

         19  whether you have insurance.

         20                 It's horrible public policy to force

         21  people to drive without licenses. Immigrants are

         22  losing their jobs, will be losing their jobs. Won't

         23  be able to drive their kids to school or to

         24  hospitals. And they'll get into accidents without

         25  insurance. The insurance payment for all drivers in
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          2  New York will go up. It's a beginning of a horrible

          3  policy that will undermine road safety for all New

          4  Yorkers and also endanger the survival of countless

          5  immigrant families.

          6                 We're urging all elected officials

          7  including City Council members to contact the

          8  Governor and tell him to immediately stop his policy

          9  of revoking licenses. Further to allow all

         10  undocumented immigrants to have access to driver

         11  licenses so that they can continue to work and go

         12  about their daily lives.

         13                 I know it is a lot of issues. But the

         14  way that immigrants are both treated and trying to

         15  struggle to live, I think, you get a sense of what

         16  kind of challenges immigrants face today with

         17  various levels of government and how vulnerable

         18  immigrants are. We need to be coming up with

         19  policies that protect the rights of immigrants and

         20  that provide vital services so that immigrants can

         21  continue to contribute in our society. Thank you for

         22  this opportunity to testify.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: I want to

         24  welcome Council Member Clarke to the hearing. Next.

         25                 MS. KIM: Good afternoon. My name is
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          2  Jean Kim. I'm the Director of the Commission on the

          3  Dignity of Immigrants at the New York City Central

          4  Labor Council. I'm here to testify on behalf of our

          5  President, Brian McLaughlin. I would like to thank

          6  Councilman Stewart for opening up this hearing as

          7  well as the other members of the Council and Jackie

          8  Sherman as well for all of your help.

          9                 This is the statement from Brian

         10  McLaughlin. President Bush's proposal to grant

         11  temporary worker status to undocumented immigrants

         12  does not go far enough. The plan deepens the

         13  potential for abuse and exploitation of these

         14  workers, while undermining the wages and labor

         15  protections for all workers by formalizing an even

         16  larger class of workers who would be accorded only

         17  second tier status in American work places. It will

         18  exacerbate the decline in job quality and job

         19  security for all workers.

         20                 Our nation's leaders must embrace

         21  meaningful immigration reform because it is the

         22  right thing to do. We must recognize and reward the

         23  hard work of millions of undocumented immigrants who

         24  have come to our country to embrace the American

         25  dream and contribute to our economic prosperity.
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          2                 The labor movement now challenges

          3  President Bush to press the Republican leadership in

          4  Congress to pass critical bipartisan immigration

          5  proposals that are pending in Congress such as a

          6  DREAM Act which provide assistance and access to

          7  college education for qualified undocumented

          8  immigrant students. The DREAM Act would affect

          9  65,000 students approximately throughout the country

         10  who are among our nation's brightest students,

         11  valedictorians and people who are barred from

         12  pursing higher education.

         13                 This is a side note. On Monday, April

         14  19 and the 20th, the New York City DREAM Act Task

         15  Force which consists of the New York Immigration

         16  Coalition, the Central Labor Council as well as a

         17  host of other community organizations throughout the

         18  City has the largest contingent from the country

         19  going to Washington, D.C. to lobby our federal

         20  representatives and President Bush. We have

         21  approximately 200 people going to rally and present

         22  petitions to the President. We extremely excited and

         23  proud of that effort.

         24                 We encourage the Republican

         25  leadership to press for the AgJobs bill which would
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          2  legalize 500,000 hard working farm workers and

          3  oppose the Clear Act legislation that would deputize

          4  local police to serve as INS agents. These are the

          5  legislative items that we are really focused on and

          6  President Bush has chosen to ignore these bipartisan

          7  pieces of legislation and instead has chosen to

          8  propose something that really is saying to

          9  immigrants, you're welcome to our economy, but not

         10  our society. Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Thank you. At

         12  this time, I want to welcome Council Member

         13  Martinez, the prime sponsor of this legislation. I

         14  don't know if you want to say something now or you

         15  want to wait.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chair. I just want to excuse myself at this time

         18  for the tardiness. I was over at City college with

         19  Senator Kerry. I'll wait for them to testify.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Thank you.

         21                 MR. KHAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My

         22  name is Amin Khan. I'm a Director of Transport

         23  Workers Union, Local 100. We represent 38,000

         24  working class people in New York City. Sixty percent

         25  of which is African American and minorities, 45
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          2  percent of which is immigrants. Of the other 40

          3  percent, there is a five percent European immigrant

          4  population, largely, Italians and Russian

          5  immigrants.

          6                 Transport Workers Union has been

          7  active in immigration reform in some limited ways.

          8  We are now seeking to expand our trust because of

          9  the recent events of 9/11. The New York City transit

         10  has taken a different approach to immigration. One

         11  of the things it did, right after 9/11, they

         12  compiled a special list of people who have worked in

         13  the transit authority for between five and ten

         14  years. And said that these people have some type of

         15  nonspecific immigration problems. They were

         16  employing us to reach out to these people to figure

         17  out what the immigration problems were.

         18                 We have no idea how these people got

         19  listed. It's a combination of Caribbean, Hispanic,

         20  Russians, what have you. One or two Orientals in

         21  there. Also, under their "uniform policies", they

         22  started to attack immigrant Muslim men who wore

         23  their traditional religious headwear. Saying that it

         24  clashed with their uniforms and as such they didn't

         25  want them to operate buses in the public view

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION

          2  anymore. Which has become a case in the federal

          3  court.

          4                 Added to that, recently the Transit

          5  Authority attempted to displace 40 Russian

          6  immigrants saying that they didn't have a command of

          7  the English language. I'm talking about people who

          8  have worked for the Transit Authority for a minimum

          9  of five years.

         10                 The Transit Authority was prepared to

         11  kick them out the door. The Local instituted, or I

         12  should say the Local hired a tutor to teach them

         13  English as a second language and get them qualified.

         14  I'm stressing that these are qualified technicians

         15  who have been on the job for over five years working

         16  there. And then suddenly they didn't have a place

         17  because the way they spoke English was a problem.

         18                 The Department of Justice in the

         19  local is seeking a grant which is already in place

         20  and beginning January, there is going to be a worker

         21  education program and also some type of public

         22  outreach to educate people on immigration, issues

         23  and their rights, et cetera. The TW supports this

         24  important resolution. I don't think I need to go

         25  into anymore details about it. My two esteem
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          2  colleagues whom I work with in some limited capacity

          3  have already adequately explained the disadvantages

          4  of the Bush Reform act. The DREAM Act we support.

          5  The resolution we support 100 percent.

          6                 Bush's Immigration Reform, his Guest

          7  Worker Act, to me it parallels with students of

          8  Caribbean history, if they look at slavery in the

          9  West Indies in the late 1900, after the British

         10   "freed the slaves", they introduced indentured

         11  labor. What indentured labor was they solicited

         12  immigrants from China, India, Pakistan to come to

         13  work in the Caribbean on a temporary basis with

         14  promises that they would be able to go back home

         15  later on and rejoin their families. It was nothing

         16  more than slavery It was cheap labor for the

         17  colonists.

         18                 What Bush is attempting to do here is

         19  provide cheap labor for the capitalists in America

         20  with no benefits. Now in those days, it was

         21  difficult to get the immigrants back home and now it

         22  is easy to get them back home. Because you kick them

         23  out after you are done with them and put them on a

         24  plane. The immigration population you have 500,000

         25  immigrants. It is very important to the economy of
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          2  this country in that social security is being

          3  depleted at a tremendous rate. If Bush's policies

          4  continue, they only way of propping up social

          5  security would be to legalize the immigrant work

          6  force and have them be productive citizens here.

          7                 In conclusion, Local 100 supports

          8  this resolution and all productive resolutions

          9  likewise that shows a positive light in immigration.

         10  I'd like to thank again, Chairman Stewart and the

         11  other Council Members for this resolution. Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Thank you. I

         14  have a couple of questions. We spoke about the

         15  President Bush proposal, does anyone know if any

         16  provision in that plan to deal with the self-

         17  employed folks who are here? Because I can't

         18  remember reading anything in the plan that deals

         19  with self- employed people who are here. If you can

         20  shed some light on that.

         21                 MS. HONG: We're not aware of specific

         22  provisions for self- employed. Because it is

         23  basically a guest work program geared towards

         24  meeting the needs of employers.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: So, it means
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          2  that those folks who are here, that they have

          3  established themselves and they have been self-

          4  employed as maybe a carpenter or maybe mechanic,

          5  whatever, it means that there is no provision within

          6  their proposal for those folks.

          7                 MS. HONG: Right. Because it's not a

          8  broad legalization program. That's why we're saying

          9  there is needs to be a broad legalization program

         10  where people who work whether they're self- employed

         11  or not could come forward and apply for legal

         12  status.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Is there any

         14  other questions? Council Member Lou Fidler.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you,

         16  Chairman Stewart. It's really more in the nature of

         17  a comment. The immigration issue is something has

         18  been very much part of my life for quite a while. I

         19  want to first just make the statement that anyone

         20  who truly loves this country and understand what it

         21  stands for, understands the importance of

         22  immigration to this country. I can pretty much

         23  guarantee you that 99.99 percent of us are

         24  immigrants at one generational level or another. I'm

         25  sure I can trace my roots back to some place and my
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          2  family or my ancestors passed into Ellis Island. If

          3  this country did not stand for the freedom to allow

          4  them and to welcome them, I wouldn't be here. And I

          5  dare say no one in this room would be here. Because

          6  frankly none of us in our ancestors were born here.

          7                 I spent about 15 years of my life in

          8  a legal practice the primary purpose or the primary

          9  business of which was immigration law. Helping

         10  people get their green card and citizenship. I have

         11  that prospective and I understand it as well that

         12  not only is there not a sensible coherent immigrant

         13  policy in this country now, but even those that

         14  administered this policy -- when someone comes in

         15  with an application, they are at the vague reason

         16  the whims of whether or not someone woke up on the

         17  right or wrong side of the bed that morning. That

         18  same person can come in and see two different

         19  immigration officials and they get two completely

         20  different decisions and that's just the way it is.

         21  That is a horrible, horrible thing to have to live

         22  with and have people come into.

         23                 When this "Bush Reform Package" and

         24  it is a laughable term, because what this package

         25  does is create an immigration purgatory. You're
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          2  here, but you're not. You're here for as long as we

          3  can use you. We open up the opportunity for those

          4  who are here permanently to abuse you and take

          5  advantage of you as some of our witnesses have

          6  pointed out. I can tell you with a pretty great

          7  degree of certainty that when someone comes into a

          8  immigration practitioner's office and after you go

          9  through all the equities and all the various

         10  possibilities to how one might legalize their status

         11  here and you come up with the answer that there are

         12  none for that particular individual, nobody says

         13  well you have to go home. At the end of three years

         14  of temporary worker status, the Bush proposal

         15  contemplates the people are going to say, time's up,

         16  going home. That's just laugh out loud funny. I'm

         17  mean it is so absurd that that is the predicate for

         18  this particular proposal that I don't know how they

         19  can even say it with a straight face.

         20                 What the average practitioner tells

         21  the client is, go disappear back into the

         22  underground economy with the underground world from

         23  which you came before we gave you this purgatory

         24  status. The very premise of this proposal is absurd.

         25  It is ripe for abuse. It is not coming from the
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          2  right place in the heart. Because it is not really

          3  and truly intended to help undocumented workers. I

          4  know each of you said this and I agree with it a

          5  zillion percent. If at the end of the process there

          6  isn't a way to legalize your status permanently,

          7  hopefully to become citizens of this country, it's

          8  not reform. It's abuse. It's institutionalized

          9  abuse.

         10                 I want to thank Council Member

         11  Martinez for bringing this resolution to the

         12  Committee, to the Chairman. For bringing it so

         13  quickly to the agenda. Because we are a City of

         14  immigrants. We're a country of immigrants. But for

         15  sure, we're a City of immigrants and I think that we

         16  need to speak very, very clearly on this issue and

         17  very quickly. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Thank you,

         19  Council Member Fidler. Council Member Martinez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chair. I want to thank you for your leadership

         22  in helping us frame the resolution and putting this

         23  resolution before us and now holding this hearing. I

         24  have a question. But I would like to just make a

         25  statement that we in the immigrant community have to
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          2  send a clear message and a loud message this year to

          3  this Administration that they cannot use the

          4  immigrant community as part of their package to

          5  favor and help the rich.

          6                 You asked the question, Mr. Chairman,

          7  if small companies and self- employed individuals

          8  who are undocumented, do they fall in the category.

          9  Well, they don't fall in the category because this

         10  is a reform to favor big companies to continue to

         11  exploit those individuals that don't have the voice

         12  and have an urgent need to work. Because as we know,

         13  we'll find hundreds and hundreds of immigrants who

         14  come here and work and as they work, they continue

         15  to maintain their family back in the country where

         16  they come from.

         17                 We need to send a message clear that

         18  it has to be part of the national agenda that we

         19  need real reform. We need reform that will lead to

         20  permanent legalization of undocumented individuals.

         21  We need real reform that will allow access and

         22  benefits for those individuals that aren't

         23  documented. We have a responsibility to ensure that

         24  our representative in Congress understand that and

         25  get the message. That we're also holding them
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          2  reliable and accountable for making sure that this

          3  immigration reform doesn't become a reality. If it

          4  becomes a reality, it is going to become a nightmare

          5  for hundreds and hundreds of families who will get

          6  the temporary status while they're working, will

          7  raise a family while they're here. Three years later

          8  or four years later, they have to be separated and

          9  shipped back home. Undocumented. With no guarantee

         10  or no benefits whatsoever. Leaving in this country

         11  families and children that will be suffering because

         12  of the separation.

         13                 We hear this story over and over

         14  again in our communities. So, it's nothing new. But

         15  we're not stupid. That's the right word. We're not

         16  stupid because we speak other languages and we look

         17  differently. This is not something that is going to

         18  benefit us or help us. This is not going to lead us

         19  toward the American dream. On the contrary, this is

         20  closing the doors.

         21                 I wanted to ask the question in the

         22  area of, is the Immigration Coalition organizing

         23  around sending the message to our congressional

         24  delegation in the State of New York in terms of them

         25  understanding the impact this will have and getting
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          2  some sort of understanding where they stand on this

          3  proposal?

          4                 MS. HONG: Yes. We have been working

          5  our congressional delegation on both the current

          6  bills such as the DREAM Act, AgJobs and the Clear

          7  Act. And then trying to press for a clear positions

          8  on the legalization. We're going to do a big

          9  district lobby day in the beginning of June. Because

         10  we have several dozen groups that are meeting

         11  monthly to discuss strategies on how to work on

         12  legalization which will be a combination of grass

         13  roots organizing, civic participation, voter

         14  mobilization work and the media work. That's going

         15  to be combined to really hold elected officials

         16  accountable.

         17                 We're going to ask them to pledge

         18  support for a number of principals that includes the

         19  basic components that I described such as

         20  legalization, family reunification, worker

         21  protection and so on, so that we'll know people

         22  can't sit on the fence or they can't say well I

         23  supported in spirit and so on. We'll make people

         24  sign. If you support it, sign it. We want your name

         25  on paper.

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION

          2                 Also we're expecting a Democratic

          3  bill to be introduced that includes most of the

          4  provisions that activist are calling for on the

          5  Senate side from Senator Kennedy's office and the

          6  house side with the Democratic leadership Guartez

          7  (phonetic), Mendez, and so. That will be another

          8  opportunity for people to co- sponsor or not co-

          9  sponsor.

         10                 I think we'll have more tools to hold

         11  people accountable. That's our plan. Holding elected

         12  congressional members accountable by asking them to

         13  sign on paper what they're seeing. Because we've

         14  heard a lot of good language. And doing a lot of

         15  media work in advance. Because we know that New York

         16  is not a swing state. The resistance is not mostly

         17  coming from New York. We want to do media work that

         18  has national impact. Whether it's preparing for the

         19  RNC convention that's coming in the summer or other

         20  types of media work to get the story out for a

         21  national audience. That's basically our plan for

         22  this year.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Has the City

         24  Administration, the Mayor's office, have they made a

         25  statement to regards to this reform? The guest
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          2  workers?

          3                 MS. HONG: I'm not sure if they made a

          4  specific statement. They're on record as supporting

          5  the DREAM Act and a lot of the proposals and the

          6  Mayor has said, they should all be legalized on a

          7  few occasions. But nothing more than that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you.

          9  Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just feel that this issue

         10  should be made part of one of the center issues as

         11  we approach this election year in reference to how

         12  both Republican -- we know where the Republican

         13  stand. But we also need to hear clearly where

         14  Democratic candidates stands in the issue of

         15  legalization for undocumented workers and

         16  undocumented individual and family in the states.

         17  This should be the center issue for us to hear from

         18  that candidate as to what is his stand and what

         19  approach and what is his plan for legalization in

         20  the states.

         21                 MS. HONG: Exactly. Because in the

         22  end, I think, we might have some sort of a

         23  legalization bill. But the real question is how is

         24  it going to be able to cover as many people as

         25  possible. There is going to be regardless of whether
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          2  you're Republican or Democrat, there's going to be

          3  attempts to carve out people because of various

          4  reasons. That's where we need to weigh in and it

          5  would be really great for City Council Members to

          6  also weigh in to make sure that provisions aren't

          7  weakened or comprised from the beginning.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Correct. And

          9  if I may, Mr. Chair, that was also a question that

         10  was raised, as you know, Senator Kerry who is the

         11  Democratic nominee is at City College now as we hold

         12  this hearing and one of the students asked the

         13  question in terms of the DREAM Act and his stand.

         14  And we need to hear those answers. We need to hear

         15  those answers. He's going to visit the university in

         16  the college. Those are the kind of questions and the

         17  issues that we need to make sure that they address.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Thank you. I

         19  just want you to go back to something that you

         20  mentioned a while ago about the question of reaching

         21  out to folks. Did you reach out to the state

         22  legislators concerning the DMV problem that we're

         23  having now?

         24                 MS. HONG: Yes, we did. Again, we're

         25  stuck in the situation where we've had a bill in the
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          2  assembly for several years and it's not going

          3  anywhere. I think we have a lot more community

          4  opposition because what the state is doing is not

          5  only continuing not to allow undocumented immigrants

          6  to have access to licenses, they're revoking

          7  licenses from people who already have them. We have

          8  an emergency working group that's meeting every

          9  week. We're trying to meet with the Governor's

         10  office. Any assistance, I know that Council Member

         11  Monserrate went up and meet with the DMV

         12  Commissioner. I think pressure from City Council

         13  Members are enormously important in order to stop

         14  this policy. It's one thing to live a fear, but it's

         15  another not to be able to move around at all and to

         16  be able to work. It's a huge issue, yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Do you know if

         18  any policy whereby immigrants who might be here

         19  temporarily and they may have had their driver

         20  licenses from their country that they've come from,

         21  have they been given any special provision to be

         22  able to drive? How do you separate that? I'm trying

         23  to figure out is there any problem with DMV issuing

         24  special permit or license for them to drive here

         25  having a license from another country?
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          2                 MS. HONG: I'm not familiar with

          3  regulation governing international licenses or

          4  things like that. But I think that only still, I

          5  think that may be part of a solution. But I think

          6  that only covers a very small set of people. We need

          7  to look at other -- I think the real answer is what

          8  are the alternative forms of ID that people can

          9  produce instead of a Social Security number to prove

         10  identity in residence. If that's what you need,

         11  that's what you should ask for, not for your

         12  immigration status.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: The reason why I

         14  asked that is because I know for a fact that they

         15  don't really recognize reciprocity from many of the

         16  countries in terms of driving. If they accepted

         17  that, it would have solved some of the driving -- it

         18  would have been part of the driving policy. Any

         19  other questions? Council Member Clarke, you have a

         20  question?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair. I want to thank Council Member Martinez as

         23  well for bringing forth this resolution. Whenever

         24  there is discussion or conversation or even

         25  announcement of anything that sounds like relief to
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          2  persons in our community who are in between status,

          3  there is a flurry of activity that begins to take

          4  place in the community. I think it is very important

          5  that we continue to air our concern about the

          6  current proposal before us. We've all said, I don't

          7  need to repeat, what this will create within our

          8  society. It just sort of reinforces some of the

          9  practices that already take place. But now gives it

         10  some validity.

         11                 Our understanding of that leads us to

         12  know that this is not something that is acceptable

         13  to us. But, recently I received something in my

         14  office from the Vision of the Homeland Security

         15  around the decision, I believe it was probably

         16  litigated, that enables people who were on the list

         17  for legalization under the last amnesty. That there

         18  was some glitch in it. And they're calling now for

         19  people who were on that list but didn't get through

         20  to now come, I believe, beginning in May. I think it

         21  is going to be very important for us to translate

         22  that information accurately to our communities.

         23  Because there's always a drive that happens.

         24  Unscrupulous lawyers begin popping up, people who

         25  are misguided in their information about who is
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          2  eligible for what and it usually ensnares a lot of

          3  innocent people when that happens. I mean, it is

          4  very similar to an announcement like this. People

          5  think without really even hearing properly, they can

          6  walk into the INS now and ask to be put on the list

          7  for this program. Not knowing just what a trap it

          8  truly is.

          9                 My question is working with the Chair

         10  of this Committee, how can the Council be active in

         11  a multi- prong approach to one, protect the number

         12  of folks in our community who are susceptible to

         13  false information. And two, at the same time

         14  advocate for the type of momentum we need. The

         15  continued momentum and pressure we need to get the

         16  most appropriate remedy in place for our folks. I

         17  think it has to be a multi- prong approach because

         18  unfortunately, what happens is, a lot of

         19  misinformation (it happens in my district almost

         20  regularly) and how do we do reinforce the safety

         21  net? For instance, I didn't receive any directive or

         22  information or alert about the DMV issue. I've heard

         23  it passing. But I think it becomes even more

         24  critical in a community like mine where we have a

         25  commuter van industry. So, that when peoples license
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          2  expire, they're cautious about going in to renew

          3  their license if they're in between status.

          4                 People we have a livery service in

          5  our community where and in many communities. These

          6  are people who may not even be aware of what's going

          7  on. I think we have to become much more connected in

          8  terms of communicating to make sure that even if we

          9  have to draft up certain materials that they're

         10  available and visible within communities with large

         11  immigrant populations. So that people don't get

         12  ensnared in these traps that are set out there.

         13  There are more and more set up every day. But I

         14  think we have an obligation here at the New York

         15  City Council to begin to uncover a lot of this and

         16  at least provide accurate information while we do

         17  our advocacy so that people are not caught up,

         18  families are not caught up, people are deported in

         19  the process. Any thoughts on that?

         20                 MS. KIM: I'd like to respond to that.

         21  Last year, most of the people in this room, Council

         22  Members, were involved in the Immigrant Workers

         23  Freedom Ride, the Central Labor Counsel and the

         24  National AID LCIO, as well as both of my colleagues

         25  up here were very involved in that. I think that
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          2  really provided some momentum to get the immigration

          3  issue out there in the mainstream to educate people

          4  and say this is not just an issue for immigrants, by

          5  immigrants, but it's an issue that affects all of

          6  us. I mean, we're all immigrants in some manner.

          7                 I think it's important for us to

          8  continue that momentum and we've been in discussions

          9  in working groups with the same type of questions

         10  that you just brought up. I think one of the things

         11  that many of the groups could agree on is that we do

         12  need to broaden our coalitions. Everybody needs to

         13  be educated on the current environment. Many of the

         14  immigrant communities, they're not aware of the

         15  specifics of this proposal. To tie it into the

         16  election and to bring people out to vote with these

         17  compelling issues and centralize really our

         18  information network so that we're all on the same

         19  page, I think is incredibly important.

         20                 I must say that a lot of the

         21  immigrant communities are a lot more sophisticated

         22  that I think President Bush really thought

         23  initially. Because I think initially when a lot of

         24  communities heard this on the radio and on Spanish

         25  radio, they jumped up because they were excited and
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          2  then the next second they said, whoa, wait a minute.

          3  I think if he did get an initial election year

          4  bounce from this, as a lot of people have said, it

          5  really didn't last. It appeared too long. I think we

          6  are moving forward. There is a lot of work to be

          7  done. But, we all need to come together and realize

          8  that this is not just an niche issue. This is an

          9  issue where we have the highest levels of

         10  undocumented immigrants in our society. Twelve

         11  million, I think, there are approximately counting.

         12                 As a matter of public policy, you

         13  really cannot ignore 12,000,000 people whether you

         14  stand on one side of the fence or another. I think

         15  everybody would agree that decisions have to be made

         16  about what to do with them.

         17                 MS. HONG: I have a couple of concrete

         18  suggestions. One is I think it would be extremely

         19  helpful for Council Members to write to the Governor

         20  saying that you're DMV policy just is extremely

         21  harmful to our immigrant constituents. We can

         22  provide more information on that.

         23                 Second, funding things like the

         24  immigrant opportunities initiative which funds

         25  legal, very good quality low cost legal services
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          2  both for immigration and worker legal services is

          3  just so extremely important because they're the

          4  dependable people where you can get information

          5  about what you're eligible for, what you're not

          6  eligible for. And not accidentally do something that

          7  would be to your deportation.

          8                 I can't stress how appreciative we

          9  are of the Council involvement and support for the

         10  immigrant opportunities initiative which I think is

         11  the local and concrete thing that could be supported

         12  this year and we're glad that there's more support

         13  this year than prior years. Those are the two

         14  specific things.

         15                 I think we should be very creative

         16  and look at -- we've been talking informally about

         17  maybe developing a City resident card or something

         18  where we could look at giving people without ID's or

         19  status some sort of a protection or some sort of a

         20  proof of identification. Because that provides a

         21  shield of protection. If you can't produce anything

         22  whether you're talking to the police or talking with

         23  a government worker, you're immediately

         24  disadvantaged and are suspected of hiding something

         25  or whatever. I think there are creative things that
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          2  we could think about in light of the fact that the

          3  DMV and a lot of the status sharing and social

          4  security numbers and all of those things are

          5  demanded more and more of people. That if there is

          6  some way of providing some sort of a interim

          7  protection and identity for undocumented immigrants,

          8  about a half of million people in the City, that

          9  that would go a long way. There might be ways of

         10  using the TIN, the tax identification number or

         11  counselor ID's. We would love to discuss with you

         12  possibilities along those lines.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And then just

         14  finally, I think for me, my concern is the

         15  disconnect in terms of the flow of information.

         16  Often times, your organizations is going to be keyed

         17  into a lot of things that are current or that are

         18  coming down the pike before our offices do. To the

         19  extent, we can have even a blast fax or something

         20  that we can put into so that there's a continual on

         21  what I call the underground railroad. Because my

         22  office is definitely a stop. We need to be as

         23  proactive in being able to help our constituents. I

         24  consider everyone within my Council district, my

         25  constituent. Navigate this process and for many
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          2  folks, it may be you don't want to do that. We would

          3  advise you to do this instead. It's a matter of how

          4  you give advice to people. Because there are so many

          5  booby traps out there right now.

          6                 I have people who want to, someone in

          7  their family passed away, and they want to go back

          8  home for the funeral. We have to tell them, no.

          9  Don't go home. Do you know that now when you go

         10  through the airport, this is what happens? Even for

         11  people who may have their green cards. There is a

         12  serious challenge with coming back into this nation

         13  if you have parking tickets. We've got to be honest

         14  and open and give people the knowledge base from

         15  which to make inform choices. To the extent that

         16  your organizations and our offices can communicate

         17  even if it's just a blast fax. That helps in our

         18  ability to be current and accurate in what we tell

         19  to our constituents. Thank you.

         20                 MR. KHAN: If I just may, Council

         21  Member Clarke and Chairman Stewart, the English

         22  speaking immigrant community depended largely, I

         23  would say to a large extent on word of mouth from

         24  person to person and on a broader scale, WLIB, which

         25  carried several immigration programs. People may be
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          2  aware that WLIB is no more. It is now the voice of

          3  America. That has created a void for the English

          4  speaking Caribbean community which needs an active

          5  immigration advice office. If there is anyway that

          6  something like that could be initiated and I'll come

          7  into you. Because there is a void. It is desperately

          8  needed. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Thank you for

         10  your suggestion. Thank you ladies and gentlemen for

         11  your information. You are very helpful. We expect to

         12  see you back here again because we have some other

         13  immigration issues that is coming up on the 28th

         14  that we would like you to participate in. That is to

         15  do with an issue that was raised by Council Member

         16  Clarke that is with those unscrupulous folks that

         17  are working in our districts in terms of taking

         18  money and providing bad advice or doing the wrong

         19  things. We would like you to participate on that. We

         20  have a legislation that I'm sponsoring on that to

         21  regulate some of these what you call, I would call

         22  them immigration sweat shops. Thank you very much.

         23                 Our next two members of the panel

         24  would be Yu Soung Mun and Ana Maria Archila. Would

         25  you please first identify yourself and then you may
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          2  begin.

          3                 MR. MUN: Thank you very much for

          4  having me today. My name is Yu Soung Mun. I am

          5  representing the Ykasec, a Korean American Community

          6  Based Non- Profit Organization. I'm here today to

          7  testify in favor on Resolution 42. I think many

          8  things are already covered by others. So, let me

          9  just briefly summarize my statements. I heard that I

         10  have only three minutes. But it seems to me others

         11  can speak more than that. Let me briefly finish my

         12  turn because many people sat here for a long time.

         13                 In our view, President Bush's message

         14  to the undocumented community is very clear. Only

         15  undocumented immigrants are needed in our some power

         16  of the economy. They are not welcome at all in

         17  American society. Even though they are dominating in

         18  so many areas. Because Bush's proposal is not

         19  comprehensive immigration reform at all. It is

         20  temporary. It does not provide permanent residency

         21  for undocumented workers. It does not provide for

         22  worker protection. It does not have any serious

         23  legalization plan. It does not address the

         24  immigration backlogs.

         25                 So many immigrants coming don't read
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          2  and write out there. Also, President Bush's

          3  announcement has also led to widespread opposition

          4  and confusion in immigrant communities. Many

          5  undocumented immigrations were misled into believing

          6  that the Bush proposal provide a path to

          7  legalization. But unfortunately, it will only

          8  legalize a system of cheap labor.

          9                 This year actually since last year,

         10  the immigrants community have dedicated a tremendous

         11  effort, resources, attention and energy to passage

         12  of the two bills. Many others already mentioned,

         13  number one, AgJobs, the legalization program for

         14  certain groups are undocumented farm workers. The

         15  other one is a DREAM Act. It is also the

         16  legalization program for certain groups of

         17  undocumented students. Latin American and YKASEC

         18  have been working really hard to get almost 10,000

         19  petitions from the community members to ask

         20  President Bush to support the DREAM Act.

         21                 Actually next Monday, we are going to

         22  Washington, D.C. with the 65,000 petitions to

         23  deliver. These 65,000 petitions represents the

         24  number of undocumented students who graduate from

         25  high school every year. However, President Bush
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          2  chose to remain silent on these two important

          3  bipartism bills and thus clarifies to us serious

          4  challenges facing us in our immigrant work.

          5                 I was real happy when I heard this

          6  resolution, but I don't think it will be enough for

          7  the final victory for the undocumented immigrants. I

          8  just want to close sharing that the currently our

          9  immigration system is broken. The Korean American

         10  community and all the great organizations of New

         11  York City have come together to call for

         12  comprehensive immigration. President Bush proposal

         13  is simply not the right solution. Please keep

         14  working hard on the real comprehensive immigration

         15  legalization matter. Thank you very much.

         16                 MS. ARCHILA: Thank you very much for

         17  giving us the opportunity to testify. My name is Ana

         18  Maria Archila. I'm the Executive Director of the

         19  Latin American Integration Center which is a

         20  community-based organization in Queens and Staten

         21  Island, an immigrant rights organization.

         22                 I think most people, most of the

         23  panelists have said most of the things that I had in

         24  my testimony. But I just want to say that we're here

         25  in support of the resolution because we think that

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION

          2  if President Bush is committed to real immigration

          3  reform, he needs to really sit down and understand

          4  the principles of what a real immigration reform and

          5  legalization looks like. Those principles are the

          6  ones that were mentioned before, a Path to

          7  Citizenship, Family Reunification and the Protection

          8  of Workers' Rights.

          9                 I want to allow Anhila Perez, who is

         10  a Youth Activist, to talk about her experience.

         11  She's been one of the leading voices for the DREAM

         12  Act. She's probably going to be able to say it much

         13  more powerful and why it is important for everyone

         14  in our communities, why it is important for us to

         15  support the DREAM Act and to really, really push our

         16  congressional delegation to be loud in making sure

         17  that immigrant students are included. And are really

         18  allowed the possibility to contribute to society

         19  with their potential.

         20                 Before asking her to speak, I just

         21  want to say that real immigration reform is about

         22  inclusion and it's about fairness. Even though the

         23  immigration laws are really a federal level matter,

         24  there's a lot of inclusion to be done in New York

         25  City. I think you have the power to do that. And a
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          2  lot of inclusion of immigrant parents, immigrant

          3  students, immigrant workers that is to be done in

          4  New York City and she's going to talk about the

          5  DREAM Act which is one of the proposed legislation

          6  that would allow undocumented students to attend

          7  college at tuition rates that are equal to those

          8  students that are not undocumented that are

          9  residents of the state. It would also allow them to

         10  legalize their status and contribute their potential

         11  and their knowledge and their experience to the

         12  communities where they live.

         13                 One of the ways in which the City

         14  Council could really open up the franchise and

         15  really include the immigrants that are already in

         16  New York City is for example, in terms of education,

         17  really pushing for parents to be included into the

         18  school system. Really allowing non- English speaking

         19  parents who might be legal or undocumented

         20  immigrants to really participate in the education of

         21  their children.

         22                 I'm just going to read a couple of

         23  things. Under the misleading disguise of

         24  legalization plan, Mr. Bush proposed guest worker

         25  program that temporarily allows immigrants to work,
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          2  but does not allow them to settle into the United

          3  States. Sending a message to immigrants and their

          4  families that says, you're labor and hard work and

          5  tax dollars are welcome, but you are not welcome. Go

          6  back to your country.

          7                 We're here to say if President Bush

          8  is serious about immigration reform, he needs to

          9  commit to a serious principles outlined above, which

         10  are the ones that I mentioned before. There are

         11  proposals already in place. That's the basic

         12  message. And now I'm going to allow Anhila

         13  (phonetic) to speak.

         14                 MS. ANHILA: Thank you, Ana.

         15                 Members of the New York City Council

         16  Immigration Committee, thank you for inviting me to

         17  testify at this important hearing.

         18                 My name is Anhila. I'm 18 years old.

         19  And At the age of 12, my parents took me out of

         20  Colombia, my native country, to escape the armed

         21  conflict that had started to invade our lives and

         22  create security and economic concerns in our family.

         23                 We arrived in New York City in 1999

         24  and since then my experience as a young immigrant,

         25  living in an immigrant home, has been very important
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          2  in shaping my understanding of the world.

          3                 I am glad that I have had the

          4  opportunity to live in this country because I became

          5  Italian, and I learn a new language. I become more

          6  involved in activities that promote social change

          7  and participation. I am currently the Student

          8  Government President at my school. I am lower kids

          9  leader and I host a Spanish radio show named (In

         10  Spanish.)

         11                 Moreover, I am serving my community

         12  at the Latin American Integration Centers Youth

         13  Component as a Youth Empowerment Activist.

         14  Currently, I am a senior at International High

         15  School in Queens with a GPA of 3.8.

         16                 Unfortunately, I have to include

         17  myself in the 65,000 graduating students in the

         18  United States that are frightened of seeing our

         19  dreams of attending college disappear. Undocumented

         20  immigrant youth are constantly challenged to survive

         21  in a place where they are effectively denied access

         22  to higher education due to laws such as the 1996

         23  immigration law that forces the states to charge

         24  undocumented students out of state tuition at any

         25  public college or university. These immigration
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          2  policies are preventing some of these countries best

          3  and brightest students to accomplish their academic

          4  goals and most importantly from becoming both

          5  socially and economically contributors of the

          6  society.

          7                 So, to address the situation, the

          8  development relief and education for alien minors,

          9  DREAM Act, is currently pending in Congress and has

         10  bipartisan support. Major changes will occur in

         11  current national law if the DREAM Act is approved.

         12  Undocumented immigrant students that meet certain

         13  requirements will be provided with in-state tutition

         14  and conditional permanent residency status.

         15                 This allows access to higher

         16  education to these talented students that struggle

         17  day after day working part-time in low wage jobs to

         18  help their families and are constantly experiencing

         19  poor working conditions and fear. And at the same

         20  time, making big efforts to remain in school.

         21                 I think that we have to understand

         22  that the DREAM Act is the only hope for many

         23  students like me to adjust our status and increase

         24  the possibility of attending college. For this

         25  reason, I am asking you to please support this
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          2  legislation and to protect the rights of all

          3  children in this country to pursue their dreams.

          4                 We want to be able to serve our

          5  communities and contribute to society with the

          6  knowledge and experience that we will gain from

          7  attending college. The only thing that we ask for is

          8  to allow us to build our future in this country and

          9  have our American dream be achieved. Thank you for

         10  listening. Mucho gracios.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: That was so

         12  moving that tears come to my eyes. (clapping).

         13  Council Member Fidler.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Who is your

         15  Council Member?

         16                 MS. ANHILA: My Council Member?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Do you know?

         18                 MS. ANHILA: Monserrate.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: We better tell

         20  Hiram to watch out. That was incredible.

         21                 MS. ANHILA: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Any questions?

         23  Council Member Martinez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: You

         25  mentioned that because you're legal status is
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          2  uncertain whether you'll be able to attend college?

          3                 MS. ANHILA: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: You also are

          5  aware that even though you're absolutely right and

          6  you gave the right reasons why, you're the right

          7  reason why we need the DREAM Act. But also, this

          8  Council was instrumental in passing a resolution a

          9  year ago asking the state to pass legislation that

         10  was introduced both at the Senate and at the

         11  Assembly that New York State is one of the states

         12  that charge undocumented students the same fees and

         13  tuition as resident or documented student. I know

         14  that doesn't go a long way in terms of meeting the

         15  financial needs. But just to let you know I'm going

         16  to be working with a group of business owners and

         17  small companies that understand the need and start

         18  putting together scholarships in the State of New

         19  York to start helping those students that may not be

         20  documented but have what it takes to continue to go

         21  on into college. Especially in the public university

         22  such as CUNY and SUNY. I just wanted to let you know

         23  that. I want to congratulate you and Hiram beware.

         24                 MS. ANHILA: Thank you. I would like

         25  to say that fortunately the New York State has the
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          2  flexibility to provide in- state tuition to students

          3  that would like to attend college and are

          4  undocumented. But the DREAM Act has become a

          5  national project or a national campaign. I think

          6  that the best thing is to represent students that

          7  currently don't have this opportunity and would like

          8  to let their voice be heard. Even though some

          9  undocumented students are charging state tuition in

         10  New York, they can't even afford it because our

         11  families are really working in such poor working

         12  conditions. Living in New York City is too expensive

         13  that we can't even afford that. Let's imagine how

         14  hard or difficult it is for students that have to be

         15  out state tuition when they have resided in their

         16  state for almost all their lives.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: I would just

         18  like to remind you that you should keep in touch

         19  with Council Member Martinez to deal with that

         20  scholarship that he mentioned a while ago.

         21                 MS. ANHILA: I shall. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Once again,

         23  thank you for your testimony. We'll call in the next

         24  panel. Tandia Bakary and Joel Magallan. You can

         25  identify yourself and then begin.
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          2                 MR. TANDIA: Good afternoon everyone.

          3  My name is Bakary Tandia originally from Morrisania.

          4  I am representing African Services and the African

          5  Immigrant Community.

          6                 First of all, I would like to thank

          7  the Council Members for their noble initiative to

          8  join efforts of advocate groups to put immigrant

          9  issues on the nation agenda.

         10                 Secondly, special thank to you for

         11  giving the opportunity to African immigrant to make

         12  their voice heard in this vital debate about

         13  immigration which is a major concern to them.

         14                 As an immigrant myself, working with

         15  immigrants on daily basis, I know what they are

         16  experiencing on a daily basis. I know the hardship

         17  they are experiencing because of their undocumented

         18  status. Such as fear of being deported,

         19  impossibility to travel to fulfil the wishes of a

         20  terminally ill mother or father. The list is very

         21  long. But you have to be in the situation to know

         22  exactly what it is.

         23                 According to the last most recent

         24  census 2000, African immigrants are estimated to

         25  450,000 immigrants here. I know many of you are not
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          2  aware how that community is really large in New York

          3  City metropolitan area. More than 50 percent of that

          4  population is undocumented. So, evidently you can

          5  understand how immigrant policies are crucial to

          6  them.

          7                 Like other immigrant communities,

          8  African immigrant barely filled with joy when the

          9  news about President Bush proposal came out.

         10  Initially, it was perceived by many community

         11  members as an amnesty. But after a close analysis,

         12  they realize that the proposal was far from meeting

         13  their expectation. In this regard, I'm not going to

         14  list all the point that have been raised in the

         15  resolution we strongly support, but I will ask one

         16  thing. Beside the proposals shortcoming highlighted

         17  in the resolution, it doesn't offer any option to

         18  those who are unemployed. Because when you talk

         19  about people who have to be employed, we have many

         20  people who are working, paying taxes as hair

         21  braiders, vendors, taxi drivers who are not covered

         22  by the proposal.

         23                 Since the majority of African

         24  immigrants belong to that category, they feel to be

         25  left out. Considering legalization as a top priority
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          2  in this community, we African Services Community and

          3  African Immigrants reservedly support the resolution

          4  42 asking for comprehensive immigration reform. We

          5  deeply believe that addressing appropriately

          6  immigration issues is an act of justice. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: You may identify

          8  yourself and begin, please.

          9                 MR. MAGALLAN: Good afternoon, I'm

         10  Joel Magallan, Executive Director of Tepeyac

         11  Asociaci¢n, the members of Immigration Community of

         12  the New York City Council.

         13                 We thank you for the opportunity to

         14  address this hearing today and for the invitation to

         15  present our testimony on the matters addressed by

         16  Council Member Miguel Martinez with regards to

         17  immigration reform.

         18                 I'm the Executive Director of Tepeyac

         19  Asociaci¢n, which is one of the Mexican

         20  organizations in the City of New York. I know that

         21  Mexicans in New York City are around probably more

         22  than 700,000 people just in the City. Tepeyac is one

         23  a network around the fibers in New York.

         24                 I'm also one of the coordinators of

         25  National Coalition for Dignity and Amnesty which is
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          2  a coalition including unions, churches and community

          3  based organizations and we have struggling since

          4  1999 for new immigration law. Asociaci¢n Tepeyac is

          5  one of the founders of this coalition.

          6                 At this time, I would like to

          7  introduce our Immigration Campaign Coordinator,

          8  Daniel Chavez and he will speak about this.

          9                 MR. CHAVEZ: Good afternoon. My name

         10  is Daniel Chavez. I want to take the opportunity to

         11  thank you for inviting us to this gathering. We

         12  appreciate the work done by Council Martinez and the

         13  rest of the Council Members.

         14                 I really want to explain what

         15  Asociaci¢n Tepeyac is. We're, like Joel said, we're

         16  a network of 40 community based organizations

         17  throughout the City and in the five boroughs. The

         18  organization was founded in 1997 by Mexican

         19  Immigrants who they saw the need to have an

         20  organization that would meet the needs of their

         21  daily lives and actually since '97.

         22                 I also want to say that Asociaci¢n

         23  Tepeyac, we oppose all legislation that does not

         24  lead to permanent residency for undocumented

         25  immigrants to live in the U.S. Whether it's
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          2  President Bush proposal or the proposal by Rep. Tom

          3  Tancredo.

          4                 Asociaci¢n Tepeyac of New York

          5  supports all legislation introduced that would grant

          6  permanent residency to the millions of undocumented

          7  immigrants who live in the U.S. Primarily, those

          8  bills which include the majority of undocumented

          9  immigrants living here in this country. And those

         10  bills that have a chance of winning political

         11  support from both political parties.

         12                 Asociaci¢n Tepeyac of New York is

         13  aware of the fact that legislation has been

         14  introduced that would legalize around 500,000

         15  students and approximately 500,000 agricultural

         16  workers. However, those bills fall short of

         17  including most immigrant workers living and working

         18  in this country. The White House proposal is a guest

         19  worker program as many of the previous speakers have

         20  already said. Workers who participate in the program

         21  may receive a three year work visa. At this moment,

         22  it is not clear whether that visa would be

         23  renewable. At the end of the visa, those who

         24  participate will not have the opportunity or the

         25  option for applying for permanent residency status.
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          2                 It appears that the only option those

          3  people would have like earlier said, would be for

          4  those individuals to turn back to their country with

          5  no benefits. Or either that or remain in the country

          6  on an illegal status. What the program seems to be

          7  creating is a permanent underclass of workers or

          8  perhaps removal from the U.S. So, Asociaci¢n Tepeyac

          9  does not support President Bush's proposal. We're

         10  looking at other proposals instead for legalization.

         11                 The White House proposal does not

         12  address the backlog family based immigration

         13  categories that have caused family members to be

         14  separated for five to ten years and in some

         15  instances even longer periods of time. Immigrants

         16  and their family members who are separated because

         17  of the outdated immigration system will remain

         18  separated or will be in the U.S. In an illegal

         19  status.

         20                 It is disingenuous for the White

         21  House to claim that it is offering a solution to our

         22  broken immigration system unless it also updates our

         23  immigration laws to accommodate the millions of

         24  undocumented workers who have been working in this

         25  country and contributing to our economy and with the
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          2  desire to become fully and legally integrated into

          3  our society. But at this moment, don't have the

          4  option to do so.

          5                 It is for these reasons that

          6  Asociaci¢n Tepeyac supports the bill introduced by

          7  Senator John McCain from Arizona, S1461 and HR2899

          8  which also includes those students that we mentioned

          9  in the DREAM Act and the agricultural workers.

         10  Asociaci¢n Tepeyac acknowledges that the McCain

         11  legislation is not the perfect bill for undocumented

         12  immigrants. It still needs some work. However, it at

         13  least fixes the immigration system which is

         14  currently dysfunctional and provides the chance to

         15  most undocumented immigrants already here in this

         16  country to apply for a permanent residency status in

         17  three or six years depending on their individual

         18  status. It also grants new temporary workers the

         19  option to apply for permanent residency after three

         20  years of working in the U.S. As well as other

         21  benefits that are not included under the President's

         22  bill.

         23                 We at Asociaci¢n Tepeyac also

         24  acknowledge that both political parties are at this

         25  moment involved in a competition for votes. One
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          2  seeking votes from Latino families and the other

          3  from employers who would rely on cheap illegal

          4  workers. We, therefore, encourage all of you City

          5  Council Members to take a step beyond the current

          6  political moment and think about our City, a

          7  metropolis historically built by the leaders of past

          8  immigrants and now sustained by the hard work of

          9  around approximately two million undocumented

         10  immigrants.

         11                 Asociaci¢n Tepeyac congratulates you

         12  not just for opposing unjust legislation, but for

         13  supporting the passage of immigration reform which

         14  would fix the immigration system in the U.S. And

         15  would grant permanent residency to the many

         16  immigrants who fuel this City's economy in this City

         17  and the rest of the nation as well.

         18                 We applaud you for being aware of and

         19  thinking about the problems concerning confronting

         20  immigrant workers in our City. However, it is not

         21  enough to just oppose unworkable legislation. We

         22  must also support immigrants in their current daily

         23  hardships. We also ask the City Council to pass a

         24  resolution calling for a stop to the dragnets

         25  currently carried out against immigrants such as in
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          2  last week's mass arrest at New York airport by

          3  Homeland Security's Bureau of Immigration and

          4  Customs Enforcement. These sting operations send a

          5  ripple of fear and intimidation throughout our

          6  communities and it prevents those immigrants who are

          7  present in those communities from carrying out their

          8  daily lives through fear and through intimidation.

          9                 Likewise, our organization has been

         10  made aware of problems with the drivers licenses

         11  issued by the DMV. We encourage the Council to pass

         12  a resolution that would allow immigrants to hold

         13  drivers licenses so they won't be the targets of

         14  unwarranted suspicion and harassment.

         15                 We have invited immigrants to come

         16  before you today and testify about this present

         17  situation with the driver's licenses. I would like

         18  to introduce two of those individuals who would

         19  present their stories before you.

         20                 MS. ROMAN: Hello, good afternoon. My

         21  name is Patricia Roman. I come in representation of

         22  a taxi company. We're here because in the last month

         23  we received a letter from the Department of Motor

         24  Vehicle. They require certification of our social

         25  security number and we don't have social security
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          2  number. We are here just to know if you can do

          3  something to stop this action because we need to

          4  work. We need to support our families. Also, we need

          5  to take our kids to the school, to the doctor.

          6                 In my case, I'm a single mother of

          7  four kids. I know a lot of people that are single

          8  parents. We need to work. We need our driver's

          9  license. I tell you my name already. My name is

         10  Patricia Roman. I have 15 years living in New York.

         11                 MR. LOPEZ: Hi, hello. My name is Jose

         12  Lopez. I'm living in New York too. The same thing

         13  that she say, I won't say because I have nothing

         14  following.. I am a father for three kids and support

         15  two in Mexico. I have to pay child support for the

         16  other one in New York State. If they take my

         17  license, we are unavailable to work. Well, on my

         18  job, I have to find something else. But now, what am

         19  I going to do? I'm going to speak for me, for

         20  myself. That's for everybody. Maybe they don't have

         21  the letters right now. But I have the letter. I'm

         22  scared. What am I going to do? I speak for everyone.

         23  They don't have a social security like me and

         24  they're going to receive the letter.

         25                 If you can do something to help us,
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          2  that's what I'm trying to say. I don't know. Because

          3  we six days to get off my license. I received the

          4  letter this month on day five and they give us 15

          5  days to prove if they have social security. But we

          6  don't have it. So, we're not going to prove that. I

          7  don't know what they're going to do. But they must

          8  have suspended the license already. But they're

          9  going to an issue. That's cancellation or whatever.

         10  We are here for that. Thanks. If you can help us, I

         11  appreciate it. Not for me, that's for everybody.

         12  They don't have a Social Security number. I say

         13  thanks for everyone.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Sir, How long

         15  have you been driving?

         16                 MR. LOPEZ: I've been driving in this

         17  country for four years.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Four years?

         19                 MR. LOPEZ and I've been living in

         20  this country for almost nine years.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: You've been

         22  driving for four years --

         23                 MR. LOPEZ: -- Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: -- And now

         25  they're asking for  -- in other words, the license
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          2  that they issued some four years ago, they're saying

          3  that you have to get a new license?

          4                 MR. LOPEZ: I'm ready to renew my

          5  license. I pay $85.00 to renew my license. They send

          6  me the license. I got the license with me. Then they

          7  send the letter. They told me we have to prove the

          8  social security number.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: This is very

         10  sad.

         11                 MR. LOPEZ: I have three kids to

         12  support. I have to pay the child support for one in

         13  here in New York. I have to send money to Mexico to

         14  support the other two. And also, we have my father.

         15  He's 74 years old already. So, he cannot work. I try

         16  to support him when I can. What am I going to do if

         17  they take my license?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Initially when

         19  you were had your license, did you have to provide a

         20  social security number?

         21                 MR. LOPEZ: No. Because when I get my

         22  first license, I live a couple months in North

         23  Carolina. Then my get my license from there. Then

         24  when I moved to New York, I go to the DMV and tried

         25  to change it. They say okay. They changed my
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          2  license. But now I renew my license and then they

          3  send me the license back, my new license. Then 20

          4  days after, they send me a letter, say they're going

          5  to take my license off.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Ladies and

          7  gentlemen, we need to do something about this. Maybe

          8  this need some mass awareness of campaign whereby we

          9  can get our State legislators to get involved with

         10  this because this is not -- I think we have to start

         11  writing letters. A lot of us have to start writing

         12  letters.

         13                 If possible, I'd like to get a copy

         14  of that letter because I would like to see what we

         15  can do if we cannot at least send letters to our

         16  State. We need to get our State legislators to get

         17  involved with this.  I don't think that it is

         18  something that we can do by ourselves. We have to do

         19  it with others.

         20                 MR. MAGALLAN: This is not only

         21  against this person. All of them are taxi drivers

         22  and they have the same problem. It is the same for

         23  many other workers who are driving to distribute

         24  food, clothes and everything, and they are working.

         25  They are just good workers. A lot of them are have

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION

          2  been renewed their driver license. This is the first

          3  time that they are requesting the social security

          4  number. They have also their letters. If you want to

          5  take some copies from them.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: I just --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Mr.

          8  Chairman, if I may? We may also want to find out

          9  what step or what progress has Council Member

         10  Monserrate made. Because I understand that he

         11  visited the DMV Commissioner with this issue. I

         12  believe that he is also in communication with DMV.

         13  Maybe we could do something jointly as a Committee

         14  with Hiram.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Not only as a

         16  Committee, but we would need to bring this to bear

         17  on the Latin/Latino and national caucus to work on

         18  this. We have to put full force, full pressure on

         19  this. Because this is something that is going to

         20  deprive a lot of folks from livelihood. This is

         21  something that in our instituting that will really

         22  change it for a lot of things. It's making hardship

         23  on everyone. We would have to do something about

         24  that. Thank you.

         25                 Thank you very much. Any questions.
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          2  Thank you very much. That concludes our Immigration

          3  forum. You will be notified as to the next hearing.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 3:00 p.m.)
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